





Table of Contents

Board of Directors & Sub-Committees	3
Life Members	4
Staff	5
Chair Report	6
General Manager Report	8
Competitions Report	12
Growth & Inclusions	21
High Performance Report	24
Representative Teams	25
National Championships	28
Australian Representatives	34
Lacrosse Victoria Foundation Report	35
LV Annual Awards	37
Best & Fairest	38
Top Goal Scorers	39
Premiers	39
Ladders & Minor Premiers	41
Clubs	47



Board of Directors & Sub-Committees

Name	Position	Attendance	Tenure	
Fergus Stewart	Chair	14/14	2026	
Jessica Symonds	Vice Chair	11/12	2025	
Bruce Freeman	Secretary & Director of Finance	14/14	2027	
Christian Williams	Elected Director	11/14	2027	
Sharna Spittle	Casual Vacancy	3/4	Commenced July	
Alec Tarshis	Casual Vacancy	4/4	Commenced August	
Negar Riazati	Casual Vacancy	2/2	Commenced October	
John Harris	Casual vacancy	2/2	Commenced October	
Peter O'Donnell	Elected Director	N/A	Resigned Jan 24	
Don Riddington	Elected Director	4/4	Resigned Apr 24	
Karen Burns	Elected Director	3/4	Resigned Apr 24	
Lauren Hunter	Elected Director	1/2	Resigned June 24	
Pam Stone	Elected Director	6/11	Resigned Sep 24	
Sarah Austin	Elected Director	6/8	Resigned Jan 25	
Michael Sholly	General Manager	14/14		

SUB-COMMITTEES

Group	Chair
Audit & Risk Subcommittee	Bruce Freeman
Marketing & Communications Advisory Group	Jessica Hay
Growth & Competitions Advisory Group	Fergus Stewart
Governance	Sarah Austin
People Clubs & Volunteers Advisory Group	Alec Tarshis
High Performance Advisory Group	Christian Williams



Life Members

Mr P Shappere 1925* Mr W J Lampard 1925* Mr G A Beech 1929* Mr W B House 1929* Mr T L Fulton 19--* Mr H Balmer 1933* Mr Joel Fox 19--* Capt Fearon 19--* Mr A E G Webb 1947* Mr G Flood 1948* Mr J L Beattie 1949* Mr E L Mcintyre 1951* Mr I J Taylor 1956* Mr R Coldstream 1960* Mr C F Lansbury 1961* Mr N R Jeffrey 1963* Mr C G Middleton 1964* Mr B Newgreen 1965* Mrs Joy Parker 1966* Mr R N Ponton Snr 1966* Mr F D Hogarth 1967* Mrs D Pearson 1968* Mr H Volk 1968* Mrs M Carpenter 1969* Mr M Taylor 1971* Mrs S Taylor 1971 Mrs M Cheevers 1973* Mr T Allington 1975* Mr R G Holden 1976* Mr H D Miller 1977 Mr W L Grav 1978* Mr G F Tillotson 1979*

Mr K R Waite 1980*

Mr L W Taylor 1982*

Mr A F Chiron 1984

Mr P A Humphreys 1983*

Mr D W Fox 1981

Ms D Appleby 1985 Mrs K Kendall 1985* Mr J Clayfield 1985* Mrs V Parker-White 1985 Mrs M Weatherhill 1985 Mr B Moore 1986 Mr R E Jackson 1987 Mrs J Jackson 1989 Mrs V Orr 1991 Mr D V Trainor 1991* Mr F Durham 1992* Mrs N Williamson 1992* Mr R D Morgan 1993 Ms S Gandy 1993 Mrs J Clerk 1994 Mr R M Russell 1994* Mr R Clerk 1995 Mr R L Speakman 1995 Mr E A Nicholls 1996 Mr R E Pettit 1997* Mr J W Daw 1999* Mr G F Sharpe 2000 Mr A J Inglis 2001 Ms S Maher 2001 Mr A H Gandy 2002* Mr N D McDonald 2003* Mr J A Harris 2004 Mr G J Lee 2005 Ms K Palmer 2006 Mr D G Ross 2006 Mr P Mollison 2008 Mr L Goding 2009* Mr A Black 2010 Mr F Stewart 2012 Mr J Nolan 2014 Mr D Joy 2017 Mrs S Sofarnos 2021*

Ms S McSolvin 2022



Staff



MICHAEL SHOLLY General Manager



NICOLA MILLARD-MICHAELIS Finance Manager



LIAM FOTHERGILL Competition Officer



KRISTEN HUTCHINSON Development Officer



Chair Report

Fergus Stewart

2024 was an exciting year for Lacrosse in Victoria.

The acceptance of Lacrosse into the Los Angeles Olympic Games for 2028 has added an air of excitement and expectation into our usual activities, as well as adding a new version of Lacrosse Sixes into our programs.

Apart from the excitement, it has added significant extra work into the lives of our many volunteers who are the backbone of our sport.

At all levels, Club, State and National we are dependent upon our volunteer base of parents, grandparents, lacrosse enthusiasts, players and past players for the survival and efficient running of our sport. The Board would like to extend sincere thanks to our volunteers for the work they do, and we hope will continue to do for the years up to 2028. I guess we do it for our kids and communities and the sport we love. Please keep it up.

The Board is also comprised of volunteers, and a significant portion of the time of the Chair has been spent this year in finding new Board Members. In the 12 months that I have been in the Chair, we have lost five Board Members, and we are about to lose another two. The reasons are the usual illness, relocation, and the pressures of being full time employees and parents. A big thank you to those people for their contribution and we extend our best wishes to them in their future activities.

In particular, a huge thank you to past Chair Jess Hay (Simmonds), who joined the Board in 2017 and has been Chair since 2020. Apart from being Chair, Jess is a mother, is employed full time and plays lacrosse. One of the many Lacrosse "Super Women" that we are so appreciative of. Thank you, Jess.

We have a very strong team on the Board with many new faces who are all striving to assist our clubs in growing the game. We look forward to these new members imparting their knowledge and adding to the varied skills already on the Board.

The Board has been undertaking a review of the current Strategic Plan 2023-2027, to reflect changes in our environment and to achieve more focus on the major strategic issues. As a result, we have split the Growth and Participation Pillar into two separate components. We are also now asking our Board Members to Chair a Pillar where possible and/or become a member of one or other of the associated Advisory Groups. This will enable the Board to provide more direct support to the important issues we are dealing with.

A big thank you is due to our LV Office staff which comprises two full time members, General Manager Michael Sholly and Competitions Officer Liam Fothergill, and three part time members Kristen Hutchison, Development Officer, Nicola Millard-Michaelis, Finance



Officer, and Rachel Devine, Communications Officer. Rachel is a recent addition, replacing Hayley Sofarnos who has left for a Board position with Lacrosse Australia. The Office is a strong and experienced team which manages all day to day activities of Lacrosse in Victoria. It is amazing to think that this small team tackles all the issues of Lacrosse in Victoria. A quick look at the websites of other Sports State offices will illustrate the point.

The state of our finances are worth a mention here. For the years of 2024 and 2025 we anticipate we will be running at a relatively small, but manageable, financial loss. There are important tasks to be done including rebuilding our playing numbers and strengthening our clubs some of which are still suffering the after effects of COVID, which is the case for most community sports. Our reserves are solid and we have the LV Foundation in the background should we need some additional financial support. However, we have an immediate task to get back into the black and have all our clubs on a strong financial footing.



General Manager Report

Michael Sholly

The 2024 year saw consolidation in our new Senior State League competitions, a new Olympic Sixes competition, and some small signs that our junior numbers are getting back to their 2019 numbers.

The Women's State League competition was completed early due to the Under 20 Women's World Cup held in Hong Kong. Victoria was well represented in this competition with eight selected and Meg Bown (Malvern) announced as the captain with Trinity Meachem (Camberwell) her vice-captain. Off the field Meghan Mollison was the coach and Sean Clarke and assistant with Cliff Butler the team's physiotherapist.

The Men's Olympic Sixes was held in April with six teams in the west and six in the east. The winners of each conference, Malvern and Williamstown, played off in the final at The Albert Reserve. Williamstown ran out winners in this inaugural event.

Congratulations to the Footscray Lacrosse Club who won both the Men and Women's State League premiership. The men's final was in a nail biter with Footscray in the last play against Williamstown. That is three in a row for Footscray so the trophy cabinet must be full at Angliss Reserve.

This was the second year of our State League and State league Reserves competitions and a review of this will be conducted during 2025 to ensure that this is the best structure moving forward.

The Board is determined to re-establish all our competitions to pre-covid levels. The table below shows that we have done this at junior levels, but the senior players have dropped off significantly.

Year	Juniors	Seniors	Total
2019	1070	829	1902
2020 - 21	n/a	n/a	n/a
2022	943	560	1503
2023	1040	610	1651
2024	1083	554	1637

Table 1 Lacrosse Victoria player Numbers



One area that is particularly pleasing is the growth of our U14 Girls competition. In 2022 there were 5 teams, then 6 in 2023, and last year we had 8 teams compete in this competition. Focussing on retention with this cohort will see our numbers continue to grow in the women's segment. Giving these girls the opportunity to play in the National U15 tournament may assist in this and consideration will be given to including a third Victorian team in this competition in 2025.

Getting the opportunity to represent Victoria in National Tournaments, and Australia in International tournaments, has an important role in the recruitment and retention of our players. We again had three boys and two girls' teams play in the U15 Tournament with a Development Team, Victoria A making four teams in the U18 tournament. We have our senior Men and Women represent Victoria at the National Championships at both Field and Box Competitions.

Our representative schedule is an enormous logistical challenge for the office, and I would like to pay special appreciation to Nicola Millard-Michaelis who has taken on the role of leading all the logistical requirements for these tournaments. Initially this was organising the flights, accommodation, transport, apparel and the budgetary requirements. Nicola also took the initiative and has managed all the Sport Australia Modules that are required by Sport Integrity Australia. Nicola has been a real driver in coach accreditation, not only for our state coaches but all our club coaches.

One of the most important elements for any player either new to the game or one who wants to play in a fun and positive environment is the attitude of their coach. Of course, these vary according to the standard and age of the players; however, getting our coaches accredited is the first step in developing their skills and improving their confidence. I am delighted that Victoria is leading the way. Many of the information delivered in the modules are not focused on skill development but rather on coaching principles that are the same across all sports. As the coach progresses through the levels the focus shifts to skills and strategy, but it is important for each coach to be able to appreciate the differing motivations that each player has and the various ways people learn.

The Lacrosse Victoria Audit and Finance sub-committee, led by Director Bruce Freeman, has been reviewing the LV fee structure. The field players have been the sole contributor to the club's membership fees. As more competitions are being introduced it is not fair that these field players subsidise all competitions. With the inclusion of the Olympic Sixes competitions, the growth of Box and the opportunity to play more social competitions, it was deemed as unfair that the field competition should shoulder all the financial responsibilities of the organisation.

The new model will see individuals pay Lacrosse Victoria a fee to play in all our fixtured competitions. This fee will cover their Lacrosse Australia fee, insurance for all competitions and a Lacrosse Victoria administration fee. The club fee would account for the various competitions they enter.



The Presentation Night was again held in the Bells Hotel Function Room in South Melbourne. Congratulations to all the winners especially to the Footscray lacrosse Club who took out the Club of the Year. Not only did Footscray win both the Men and Women State League Grand Finals but hosted the Men's State League Grand Final and the National U18 tournament.

The three most prestigious awards are the Past Presidents Award, the Nell Rawlins Award and the Shappere Urn Award.

The Past Presidents Award for outstanding contribution to men's lacrosse was awarded to Richard Tonelli. Richard has played over 600 games for Footscray, the most of anyone recorded in Victoria. Richard coached the U16 boys' team, was on the coaching staff of the Western Metros U15 team and officiated at the U12 boys and girls Lightning Carnivals.

The Nell Rawlins Award for outstanding contribution to women's lacrosse was awarded to Stacey Morlang. Just in 2024 at Newport, Stacey was the Director of coaching, State League and U18 coach and on the committee. Stacey was the senior Victorian Women's Coach, a Major League Sixes coach and has sat on various Lacrosse Victoria and Lacrosse Australia selection panels. Her lacrosse IQ is unparalleled in this country having captained and represented Australia at multiple International Tournaments and is a Hall of Famer at Oakland University.

The Shappere Urn Award, donated by LV Foundation, is to recognise the club, group or individual judged to have made the best, or most innovative, contribution to lacrosse growth. Congratulations to the Williamstown Women's Lacrosse Club on winning this prestigious award. WWLC fielded teams in all junior and senior competitions, playing finals in all grades and in four grand finals and winning two. They increased their Quickstix numbers by 30 and this was reflected in the club achieving 121 registered players. WWLC continue to achieve record numbers at both ends of the spectrum by conducting coaching clinics at schools and having multiple players represent Victoria and Australia. Congratulations to the Williamstown Women's Lacrosse Club on their outstanding year.

Liam Fothergill commenced at the start of 2024 and went straight into managing the Olympic Sixes followed by the Field season. Liam is an accomplished lacrosse player, and his experience in the sport having played from juniors, represented Victoria at various levels and played overseas were invaluable for him in managing such a diverse workload. A special thanks to him for navigating this challenging path.

Kristen continues to do am amazing job for lacrosse. In her part time role, she completed what a normal person wouldn't be able to complete if they were full time. Her knowledge in the sport and in participation and development of the game is unparalleled in Victoria. Her energy and desire to grow the game is always central to her goals and she completes this with a focus on social justice. We are indeed very fortunate to have Kristen representing Lacrosse Victoria.



I previously mentioned the great work that Nicola has achieved in the High Performance and Coaching area but she also manages the finances. Nicola is always on the lookout for savings and continues to identify wins along the way.

After three years as Communications Consultant, Hayley Sofarnos has resigned from Lacrosse Victoria. However, she is not lost to the sport. We congratulate Hayley on her appointment to the Lacrosse Australia Board where we are sure she will add such great knowledge and commitment. We wish her well in this challenging position.

My personal thanks to the Board led by Chair Fergus Stewart. Ferg has managed to set up a structure which best utilises the talents of our directors. In such a small organisation our Board must be hands on and be prepared to contribute to the operations. Thanks to all the Board who have all been willing contributors.

Lacrosse has stabilised after the disruptions of Covid, and with the Olympics in range, the opportunity for growth is a challenge that we all must welcome. I, along with the staff and board, look forward to working with the clubs to assist in this growth.



Competitions Report

Liam Fothergill

Overview

The 2024 Lacrosse Victoria (LV) season kicked off with heightened anticipation, marking another exciting year for the sport. 2024 saw fierce competition, as well as a platform to foster talent across all age groups and skill levels, drawing players from various clubs to participate in an action-packed calendar of matches and tournaments. The season displayed a blend of veteran talent and emerging stars, playing the sport we all enjoy so much. Thirteen Premiership Trophies were awarded, along with a handful of other tournaments crowning their respective champions.

Sixes Olympic Cup

With the inclusion of the Sixes version of lacrosse in the 2028 LA Olympics, LV was eager to rebrand our preseason Sixes competition to the 'Lacrosse Victoria Sixes Olympic Cup'. This rebranding along with the exciting prospect of playing in the Olympics, saw an upscaled competition and high-level lacrosse being played amongst all our clubs.

The Senior Men's and Under 18 Boys kicked off the inaugural 3-week tournament in April. The senior competition saw the 11 State League clubs as well as the Victorian U18 team added to create 6 team conferences from the South/East and North/West. Teams competed across 3 weeks, playing up to two games per day in the fast-paced, condensed version of the traditional game.

In the Men's Eastern Conference final, Malvern, claimed a close victory against MCC to be donned champions of the East. Over in the West, Williamstown was too strong coming up against Brunswick, being crowned Western Conference Champs. This led to a matchup between the two teams to claim the inaugural Olympic Cup Trophy. Ultimately, Williamstown emerged victorious (20-19), in what was an exhilarating display of lacrosse, down to the final play of the game.

The U18 Boys tournament provided a platform for emerging talent to play the new format of the game and featured intense competition among players. The tournament comprised of 6 teams competing against one another over the 3 weeks, culminating in the Championship match. This saw Williamstown and Camberwell go head-to-head, with Williamstown claiming the U18 Olympic Cup and being crowned Champions.

Due to the early commencement of the Women's SL season to accommodate for the U20 World Championships, the Women's Sixes Olympic Cup was held as a one-day tournament in September. Unfortunately, due to a number of post lacrosse season commitments and



last-minute withdrawals, the proposed U17 tournament turned into a match between Newport and Williamstown Women's. The fast-paced match gave the girls an opportunity to play the newest version of lacrosse and test their skills against one another. It was a tightly fought game, with Newport coming back from a deficit, but at the final whistle it was WWLC that were victorious, winning 10-9.

The senior women's featured an intense competition among five clubs, with Camberwell, Eltham, Footscray, Newport and Williamstown Women's all vying for the championship title. The tournament culminated in an exciting final between Williamstown Women's and Footscray Lacrosse Club. Williamstown showcased their skill and determination, ultimately defeating Footscray with a score of 9 - 3. The fast-paced sixes format added to the excitement, as players demonstrated their agility and teamwork in this condensed version of the sport. Newport was able to overcome Camberwell to secure 3rd place, marking a successful end to a day filled with high-energy lacrosse action.

Women's Competitions

Continuing from last year, 2024 saw 5 team State League and State League Reserves competitions. The Championship League (CL) saw an unfortunate withdrawal from Newport Lacrosse Club, however, was supplemented with a Williamstown Women's team and a second Eltham team, creating a healthy 7 team CL competition. A competitive and action-packed home and away season, as well as finals were played out for all three competitions.

Women's State League

It was Williamstown Women's that looked to make a statement early in the season, knocking off the raining premiers, Footscray and remaining undefeated through the first 5 rounds of play. This strong form continued throughout the year, with Footscray handing WWLC their only loss for the season in Round 6 (12-11). Newport's 7-win season earned them third on the ladder and a spot in the preliminary final against Footscray. Scores were level at halftime down at PJ Lynch Reserves, however the reigning Champions were able to come away with a 11-6 win. Malvern and Camberwell battled throughout the season, however, were no match for the powerhouses of WWLC (56 points) Footscray (48 points), who ultimately faced off in the Grand Final.

Minor Premiers, WWLC were looking to bring their in-season form to the big stage, hoping to dethrone the reigning Women's State League premiers since 2019. The stage was set at the Albert Ground and with 4 goals scored in the opening 3 minutes of play, the tempo was set early and continued for the full 60 minutes. Scores were tight at halftime, 5-4 in Footscray's favour, however it was the experienced squad of FLC that were able to slowly pull away from Williamstown. Scores at the final whistle were 12-9, with Footscray



remaining premiers for another year. Footscray's Bonnie Yu claimed Most Valuable Player honours (for a second year in a row).

The 2024 season underscored the depth of talent and the competitive spirit within Victoria's women's lacrosse community. Footscray Lacrosse Club's continued championships wins highlight their dominance, while the overall performances across teams reflect the sport's dynamic evolution.

Women's State League Reserves

There was an even spread of results to start the SLR season off, with all 5 teams notching at least one win within the first 4 rounds of matches. Newport would go on to only lose 2 matches for the season, to be crowned minor premiers on 52 points, followed closely by WWLC (48 points). Footscray and Camberwell both finished the season on 32 points, with a mere 1 goal difference, notching Footscray into the preliminary final, followed by Malvern in 5th place.

It was the two top teams of the reserves competition – Newport and WWLC set to face off in the Grand Final. The teams had met three times throughout the home and away season, with WWLC taking 2 wins from those match ups. The underdogs, Newport stuck with Williamstown for the first half of the match, with the scores tied at 4 apiece. However, after a thrilling first half, Williamstown outplayed Newport in the second to secure the silverware for the SLR premiership (12 - 6).

Women's Championship League

The 2024 Women's Championship League consisted of 7 teams, with the addition of a second Eltham team, highlighting the continual growth of the club down at Lower Eltham Park. Throughout the season, Melbourne University and ChadField were able to get several wins on the board to make a run for finals, but they were no match for the top two contenders in Eltham Gold and Williamstown Women's. The season showcased competitive play along with individual and team development as clubs battled it out to be crowned Championship League Champions, reflecting the growth and spirit of women's lacrosse in Victoria.

The season concluded in a thrilling grand finale with Eltham Gold securing the championship title against Williamstown Women's Lacrosse Club. Eltham was able to emerge victorious thanks to a large come back after being down 5-1 at the half, culminating in a final score of 10-8, bringing about back-to-back Grand Final wins for the Eltham Panthers.



Men's Competitions

In continuation from the 2023 revamp to the Men's competition structure, the 2024 Lacrosse Victoria Senior Men's showcased intense rivalries and high-calibre lacrosse across all competitions. Champions were crowned in our State League, Championship League, State League & Championship League Reserves, as well as our Community Cup division.

Men's State League

The 2024 season was a testament to the sport's growing competitiveness and the high merit of play within the region. Williamstown Lacrosse Club dominated the regular season, finishing at the top of the ladder with 14 wins (60 points). Footscray (56 points) and Malvern (52) closely followed, both showcasing consistent performances that secured their spots in the finals. Camberwell and Eltham Lacrosse Clubs demonstrated significant growth, with only one win determining the fourth finals spot, indicating their rising competitiveness in the league, followed by Caulfield finishing the season on 24 points.

The season culminated with arguably some of the best finals lacrosse action in recent history. In the Semi Finals, a dominant underdog performance from Camberwell against 2023 Grand Finalists, Malvern, saw the Wells run away with an 18-13 win, crushing Malvern's hopes of a Grand Final return. The following week, Camberwell had their sights set to make an unprecedented Grand Final appearance, running away with a 7-2 halftime lead against an under manned Footscray. This, however, didn't phase the reigning Champions, clawing back with a 13 goal second half to win the match 15-14.

The 2024 Finals series concluded in what some are calling the Grand Final of the decade, a thrilling match up whereby minor premiers, Williamstown were looking to stop Footscray continuing their two-year running championship title. Williamstown looked to take advantage of the fact the Bulldogs were without two key players, leading with a score of 10 – 6 at the half time whistle. It was, once again Footscray's determination and experience at the big stage that allowed them to come back and bring the game to a tie at the end of regular time. With the game in a sudden victory over time, it was Footscray's Emmett Barger that was able to put the game to bed. Barger's 6 goal, 2 assist haul earned him Grand Final MVP bragging rights.

Men's Championship League

After the conclusion of the 11 round State League season, it was Altona, Brunswick, Chadstone, Surrey Park and MCC, that were determined to battle out for a chance to be crowned Championship League (CL) winners. At the conclusion of the 5 rounds post season split, it was MCC that remained on top of the CL ladder to secure a spot in the Grand Final.



Surrey Park's 1 goal win in the final round against Brunswick was enough for them to clinch a Preliminary Final spot, just pushing out Chadstone Lacrosse Club by 0.29% on the ladder. This saw Brunswick and Surrey battle out in back-to-back weeks, however despite their win in the week prior, Brunswick was too strong on the day, claiming a spot in the Grand Final against MCC.

In an electrifying Championship League Grand Final, MCC and Brunswick Lacrosse Club battled in what turned out to be an intense and dramatic end to the 2024 season. After a hard-fought four quarters, the game was tied at 8-8, forcing the match into a triple overtime thriller, where Brunswick seized the championship with a sudden victory goal, in the third overtime period!

Men's State League Reserves

The 2024 Men's State League Reserves season was dominated by Williamstown Lacrosse Club, who completed an undefeated season (15-0) and finished atop the ladder with an astounding 1244.83% percentage, conceding just 29 goals throughout the regular season. Behind them, Malvern Lacrosse Club secured second place (52 points), while Eltham (40) and Camberwell (36) rounded out the top four, both proving to be formidable contenders. Footscray narrowly missed out on the finals, trailed by Caulfield.

The top four teams—Williamstown, Eltham, Camberwell, and Footscray—battled it out in the finals, including a 1 goal win by Eltham against Camberwell in the Semi Finals. After a competitive series, Williamstown and Malvern faced off in the Grand Final. Following on from their prime in season form, Williamstown defeated Malvern 22 - 11, capping off a perfect season and claiming the 2024 State League Reserves Championship.

Men's Championship League Reserves

The Championship League Reserves teams played it out throughout the season and followed their club's Championship League teams after the season split. The split saw Melbourne Cricket Club Lacrosse (MCC) dominate the competition, finishing on top of the ladder with an 11-3 record (52 points). Their consistent performances throughout the season made them the favourites heading into the Grand Final. Behind MCC, Melbourne University/Surrey Park and Altona Lacrosse Club both finished with 5-9 records, earning their spots in the finals. Despite being on equal points at the end of the regular season (28), it was Altona that was too strong in the Preliminary Final, earning a spot in the GF. In the championship match, MCC showcased their superior skill and tactical execution, defeating Altona 18-7 to claim the 2024 Championship League Reserves title.



Men's Community Cup

The Men's Community Cup (CC) league saw a combination of players, including lacrosse veterans and aspiring juniors, creating a dynamic blend of experience and new talent, providing a fun and competitive atmosphere for all players. This season, the Men's CC featured five clubs – Footscray, Malvern, MCC, Surrey Park/Melbourne University, and Williamstown, each able to field a third senior team as they competed for the Cup.

In a similar narrative to the Men's SLR season, the CC season was dominated by Williamstown Lacrosse Club, who went undefeated (60 points), their dominance on both ends of the field made them the clear frontrunners throughout the season. Behind them, Malvern Lacrosse Club (40 points) secured second place with 8 wins, showing strong defensive performances and a solid attack. Footscray Lacrosse Club (32 points) rounded out the top three, while MCC and Surrey Park/Melbourne University battled throughout the season.

In the Grand Final, Williamstown was able to continue their attacking firepower and defensive resilience, securing a commanding victory over Malvern to claim the 2024 Men's Community Cup title (22 - 2). Their perfect season highlighted their strength as the premier team in the division, setting the benchmark for future Community Cup competitions.



Junior Competitions

Girls Competitions

U17 Girls

With the unfortunate insufficient numbers to sustain a four-age group junior girls competition, the U17 age group was reintroduced instead of the previous year's U18 comp, while U16 was disbanded. The U17 Girls competition featured a competitive mix of rising talent, with teams showing a blend of experience and youth. The competition offers a platform for the next generation of lacrosse stars, combining skill development and team dynamics in an exciting and fast-paced environment. Five teams battled it out to be donned champions.

Williamstown Women's Lacrosse Club (WWLC) led the season, finishing undefeated on 52 points and a commanding goal difference, securing the top spot. Footscray Lacrosse Club followed closely in second, while Camberwell/Malvern stayed competitive throughout, securing third. Newport and Eltham showed valuable growth and development, particularly in their younger players. WWLC brought their dominant form into their Grand Final matchup against Camberwell/ Malvern, running away with a 19-1 win.

U14 Girls

The U14 age group saw a very health 7 team competition contest for the premiership. The U14 Girls season was an exciting and competitive showcase of young talent, with teams demonstrating impressive skill development and teamwork. At the conclusion of regular season, at the top of the table, Newport Lacrosse Club and Footscray Lacrosse Club were nearly inseparable, both finishing with 52 points. Newport edged out Footscray for the minor premiership. Williamstown Gold (38 points) and Malvern/Caulfield team secured top four spot in finals, followed closely behind Camberwell Lacrosse Club, both finishing with 24 points. Malvern/Caulfield's ability to secure draws kept them in contention, while Camberwell remained competitive despite a challenging season.

The Grand Final match saw a tightly contested clash between Newport and Footscray Lacrosse Club. Newport was looking to added to their minor premiership crown, with a 5-2 lead at halftime. However, the Footscray girls were able to overcome this deficit to win the match 8-7. Overall, the 2024 U14 Girls competition was a fantastic season of development and competition, with Newport and Footscray leading the way. The depth of talent across all teams highlights a bright future for girls' lacrosse in Victoria.

U12 Girls

Our nine U12 girl's teams played out a full 12-week season, with lots of fun and competitive lacrosse seen around Victoria. Additionally, two Lightning Carnivals brought all teams



together for action packed days, with Eltham Black claiming the years first pennant against MCC. While Footscray White prevailed victorious against MCC. It was fantastic to see the growth of U12 lacrosse this year, with more young players developing their skills and passion for the game, setting a strong foundation for the sport's future.

Boys Competitions

U18 Boys

The 2024 U18 Boys season was a showcase of emerging talent, with five teams competing fiercely throughout the year. Williamstown Lacrosse Club demonstrated their strength, finishing the regular season undefeated (60 points), securing the minor premiership in convincing fashion. Their strong attack and disciplined defence made them the team to beat. Footscray Lacrosse Club put together a solid season with 48 points, they proved to be a strong challenger but couldn't quite match Williamstown's consistency.

The battle for third place was tight, with Camberwell Lacrosse Club (30 points) securing the spot with 4 wins and 1 draw, showing resilience despite a tough season. Brunswick/Malvern/Surrey finished close behind in fourth, on 28 points, but struggled against the top teams. Altona had a difficult season, their development throughout the year was evident, with younger players gaining valuable experience. The finals series reflected the end of regular season ladder standings, with Footscray defeating Camberwell 8 - 4, to meet Williamstown in the Championship match. Williamstown performance reflected their inseason form, proving too strong for Footscray coming way win an 18-1 win, to be crown U18 champs.

U16 Boys

Six teams competed in the U16 Boys season which was a highly competitive and exciting showcase of young talent, with Eltham Lacrosse Club emerging as the dominant force. Finishing with an impressive 14-1 record and minor premiers (56 points). Williamstown Lacrosse Club and the combined Malvern/Caulfield team were not far off finishing the season with 44 and 40 points respectively, both proving to be tough competitors throughout the year. Footscray Lacrosse Club rounded out the top four (28 points) showing their ability to compete against the stronger teams. The combined MCC/Surrey Park/Camberwell team and Melbourne High Lacrosse Club had a tough season, despite their struggles, both teams gained valuable experience and were able to continually compete.

The semi-finals saw Eltham progressing through to the Grand Final, and Malvern/Caulfield, overcoming Footscray. The Preliminary Final saw a tough battle, with the game neck and neck for four quarters. It was Malvern/Caulfield's 4 goal last quarter that saw them emerge victorious against Williamstown (10 - 9). The Grand Final saw Malvern play hard, with a low



scoring 1-1 first quarter. However, Eltham showcased their skills and team cohesion, pulling away with a 12-5 win, to become U16 grand Final winners.

U14 Boys

In a very similar fashion to the U16 competition, our U14 boys comprised six teams, with Eltham again showcasing their dominance against the rest of the league, finishing the season undefeated. MCC finished second with a solid 10-4 record, proving to be the closest competitor. Followed by Williamstown Lacrosse Club in third place, showing flashes of brilliance on the field. Both teams, despite falling short in some matches, managed to secure a positive goal difference, showcasing their potential. The combined Surrey Park/Brunswick team rounded out the top four, remaining competitive throughout the season. Footscray Lacrosse Club and the Malvern/Caulfield/Camberwell/Ballarat combined team struggled to gain traction, fighting hard each week, each finishing with 2 wins.

Surrey Park/Brunswick was able to upset Williamstown in the Semi Finals (10 - 7), however their finals series came to an end being defeated by MCC, 9 - 4 in the Preliminary Final. This saw Eltham and MCC face off in the Grand Final. In what was a great spectacle of junior lacrosse, Eltham was able to control the tightly fought match to win 10 - 8. Overall, the 2024 U14 Boys season was a testament to the growing strength of lacrosse in Victoria, with Eltham setting the bar high. The competition was filled with opportunities for development, and the future of Victorian lacrosse looks promising with these young athletes.

U12 Boys

Our U12's played out an enjoyable season, split into east (6 teams) and west (8 teams), developing skills and showing commitment to the sport of lacrosse from a young age. All clubs were able to come together to compete at two Lightning Carnivals, which saw 14 teams at each tournament play in the round robin format. It was Williamstown Cities and Williamstown Wanderers that earned Lightning Carnival champions bragging rights.

Summary

That is a wrap for the 2024 Lacrosse Victoria season, we reflect on another fantastic year of growth, competition, and camaraderie across all divisions. From the junior competitions to the senior leagues, the season showcased incredible talent, teamwork, and sportsmanship, with players of all ages pushing their limits and making memorable moments on and off the field.

A special thank you goes out to all the volunteers who made this season possible. Your dedication, hard work, and passion for the game are what keep the sport thriving. Whether it was coaching, officiating, assisting in organising events, or supporting behind the scenes, your contributions are truly appreciated, and we could not have had such a successful season without you.



Growth & Inclusions

Kristen Hutchison

SCHOOL PARTICIPATION

LV partnered again with the Northern Special Schools Sports Association to run the TriBall Lacrosse Days in March. We had 9 special and special development schools participate with 100 students learning the basics of lacrosse across four weeks of lessons and games. LV also partnered with Sport4All to ensure our sport is more inclusive of the people with a disability.

Lacrosse Victoria also worked with CGSAV to reinstate their Annual Lacrosse Competition for 2025. The re-established Competition will see the students from compete in the Olympic format which has been modified for school participation.

The LV School Sport Victoria (SSV) State Finals saw strong numbers again in 2024. Thanks to the LV and LA Staff and the club volunteers that helped make the days so successful. The Year 7 & 8 Finals had 17 teams compete. The Year 9 - 12 State Finals grew again this year with 35 teams participating, which makes it our biggest competition on record. The Year 5 & 6 State Finals saw 20 teams compete with a special guest, Jamie Parsons, the SSV CEO, who assisted with the presentations to the winners. Across all 3 competitions, 34 schools participated in the Finals from 16 different Districts and Divisions. LV plan to continue to grow this number in 2025.

LV has worked with SSV to publish our participation data across all SSV lacrosse events. Including Primary and Secondary District/Division competitions through to the State Finals, we had 3,032 students participate, which is an increase of over 600 participants from 2023.

COACH EDUCATION

In 2024, LV continued to focus on coach education courses to increase the standard of coaching in Victoria. In March and September, LV delivered the LA Club Coach Course for 22 coaches. LV also committed to running the LA Talent Coach Course in Melbourne in February 2025 to ensure our high-performance coaches are able to access the most elite training available to them. We also ran multiple sessions which saw 30 coaches up skilled in our social participation programs.

LACROSSE FIT

Lacrosse Victoria and Merri-bek Council have partnered with Brunswick Lacrosse Club and the Lote Agency to develop the Lacrosse Fit program to culturally & linguistically diverse



women in Merri-Bek Council. The program has been co-designed and is focused on creating social connections amongst the participants while trying something new, increasing physical fitness levels, and learning the basics of lacrosse, catching, throwing, scooping, and shooting. In the last 8 months, we've had 41 women and 30 children participate in Lacrosse Fit, trained up 4 coaches, and we look to expand to multiple venues in 2025.

ANNUAL LV PRIDE ROUND

As a part of the LGBTQIA+ Inclusion Strategy, Lacrosse Victoria partnered with Pride Cup Australia to hold the second annual LV Pride Round on the 17 –19 May to help celebrate diversity and inclusion in sport for the LGBTQIA+ community, which saw an increase of participation across the lacrosse community.

During the LV Pride Round, Team Captains and club leaders read out the Lacrosse Victoria Pride Round Statement, which was developed by the LV LGBTQIA+ Advisory Group and promoted anti-homophobic, anti-transphobic and anti-biphobic messaging.

UNILAX COMPETITION

LV continued to see growth in the University Lacrosse space with UniSport hosting the inaugural UniSport Victorian IV Intervarsity Lacrosse Competition to help grow more university teams in Victoria. With support from Lacrosse Victoria, UniLax, and La Trobe, we were successful at increasing the university from 3 to 6, which saw 46 students compete. RMIT University claimed the inaugural championship after a tough game against Melbourne University.

The UniLax Competition, which competes weekly for 6 weeks each semester, has continued to be a strong competition which helps bring new players into the sport with 10 teams representing 6 Victorian universities. A big thanks to Nick Anthony and his team who have tirelessly run the competition for many years.

LACROSSE TOGETHER PROGRAM

The funding from VicHealth wrapped up in December 2023, but the Lacrosse Together program still saw programs run at 3 different universities as a part of our LGBTQIA+ Inclusion Strategy. The Lacrosse Together project lead, Kristen Hutchison, was also a finalist for the second year in a row for the LGBTQ+ Ally of the Year for the Australian Pride In Sport Awards. Lacrosse Victoria was also recognised by Pride in Sport Australia when they awarded Lacrosse Victoria with the Gold Sport Tier status, which placed LV in the top 7 national, state, and university sports associations in LGBTQIA+ inclusion.



LACROSSE TOGETHER CUP

LV partnered with Proud 2 Play for our 3rd annual Lacrosse Together Cup, which was held at PJ Lynch Reserve on Sunday, 20 October. The Lacrosse Together Cup is our annual social round robin event designed to celebrate diversity and inclusivity in lacrosse and make a stand against Homophobia, Biphobia, Transphobia and Intersex discrimination in our sport. We had 18 teams enter from 7 Field Lacrosse Clubs and 5 University Lacrosse Clubs who competed across 4 Divisions: Family, Novice, Intermediate, and Experienced. Over 160 people ranging from 5 to 71 years old played the relaxed 3v3 game format which allowed all genders, abilities, and ages to join in on the fun. The day was also successful off the field. We are proud to announce that we raised \$1038 for Proud 2 Play to help continue their great work in supporting LGBTQIA+ inclusion in sport. After another fantastic event in the books, the date has already been set for 2024, Sunday 19, October. We look forward to making the event even bigger, more inclusive and fun!



High Performance Report

Christian Williams

In 2024, Lacrosse Victoria's state teams delivered commendable performances across various national championships, reflecting the depth of talent within our programs. Overall, our teams showcased resilience, skill, and sportsmanship, reinforcing Lacrosse Victoria's commitment to excellence on the national stage.

Lacrosse Victoria is dedicated to fostering a high-performance culture by equipping and developing elite coaches with the skills and knowledge needed to develop athletes for national and Olympic levels. A strong coaching philosophy underpins this commitment, focusing on skill refinement, athlete performance, competitive advantage, and long-term development.

State coaches play a crucial role in advancing key technical skills such as passing, shooting, ground balls, decision-making, and defensive tactics, ensuring Victorian players remain competitive at the highest levels. Additionally, integrating contemporary strength and conditioning methodologies enhances resilience, injury prevention, and overall performance, with an emphasis on personalized fitness programming and workload management.

Currently, there is no unified strength and conditioning framework within Lacrosse Victoria, as guidance from Lacrosse Australia's forthcoming high-performance staff is still pending. In the interim, state team coaches are managing individual programs, while the High Performance Advisory Group (HPAG) is working to establish a more coordinated approach.

Managing athlete workloads remains a key priority, particularly given the overlap between club, state, national, and box lacrosse commitments. Without a designated individual overseeing workload distribution, Lacrosse Victoria recommends educating players and parents on injury prevention strategies and training balance. Lacrosse Victoria plans to host guest speaker sessions via Zoom, featuring expert lacrosse coaches who can provide insights into injury prevention and overtraining mitigation.

By continuing to refine coaching strategies, supporting our elite coaches to implement structured strength and conditioning programs and prioritise workload management, Lacrosse Victoria remains committed to maximising the potential of its athletes and coaches. We welcome feedback and collaboration to further strengthen our high-performance framework.



Representative Teams

Under 15 Girls

Ice – 5th place



Fire - 7th place





Under 15 Boys

Southern Crosse – 7th place





Northern Warriors – 3rd place



Western Metro – 1st place- Champions





National Championships

Under 18 Victoria Women's



Div 1 – 3rd Place – Coach Sarah Mollison

ALN Tournament Team: Georgia Floyd, Lily Harris & Ruby Regan





Div 2 – 2nd Place – Coach Emily Prentice

ALN Tournament Team: Erin Artagos, Eva Bowyer, Rangimarie Gemmell, Amelia

Smith



Under 18 Victoria Men's



2nd Place – Coach Darren Gibson

ALN Tournament Team — Angus Fluker, Jake Mannix, Angus Menzies, Ben Rogan, Blake Stringer



Under 18 Victoria A Men



5th place - Coach Stephen Bown



Victorian Women's Team

Runners Up – Coach Stacey Morlang

ALN Tournament Team: Danielle Mollison, Stephanie Kelly, Esther Lavelle, Sarah Smith

Victorian Men's Team

3rd Place – Coach – Gareth Allen

ALN Tournament Team: Clayton Burke, Cal Gibson, Chris Plumb



Victorian Women's Box

Champions – Coach Tony Joseph

All Tournament Team: Lara Braakhuis, Meg Bown, Steph Hallows

Second Team: Nat Miller, Mim Suares-Jury

Victorian Men's Box

2nd Place – Coach Wade Hammond

All Tournament Team: Brendan Freeman, Chris Plumb

Second Team: Steven Stoijkos, Tony Joseph



Australian Representatives

Women's Under 20 World Cup Team

4th place - Coach Meghan Mollison

Assistant Coaches - Sean Clarke, Sarah Smith

Physio – Cliff Butler

Vic Players: Meg Bown (C), Trinity Meacham (VC), Abbey Burns, Marley Dawson, Georgia Floyd, Lily Harris, Ebony Norman, Mim Suares-Jury, Rhiannon Bergen

All-World Women's U20 Team: Mim Suares-Jury



Lacrosse Victoria Foundation Report

Fergus Stewart

The Victorian Lacrosse Foundation was established in May 1999 to support the sport of lacrosse in Victoria, specifically in the areas of junior development, administration, and publicity and promotion of the game.

The Foundation was charged with the responsibility of raising, holding and administering a trust fund, which has an initial target of \$1 million. Changes to the Trust Deed over the years permitted some distributions from the Foundation prior to the Fund reaching the target.

At the Lacrosse Victoria Inc.(LVI) Annual General Meeting, held on 17th April 2023, the meeting approved a recommendation from the Board that the Constitution of LVI be amended to include the establishment of the Lacrosse Victoria Foundation Subcommittee which would oversee the activities of the Foundation going forward.

To that end the Funds of the Foundation were subsequently transferred into Lacrosse Victoria Inc. and a Subcommittee of the Board established to oversee its future development.

The subcommittee was duly appointed by the Board in accordance with the new Clause 27 of the Constitution and continues to run the activities of the Foundation. The current members comprise Board Representatives Fergus Stewart (Chair), and Jess Simmonds, and Doug Fox and Sue Gandy LVI Life Members, Bruce Freeman acts as Secretary.

The Accounts show accumulated funds at 31st December 2024 of \$ 248,218 including a Term Deposit of \$218,225. Interest on the Term Deposit for the year amounted to \$8,225.

The invested funds are currently achieving an improved return as interest rates have increased significantly over immediate past years. Thanks are due to continuing contributions from regular donors who are able to take advantage of the tax break on offer by contributing to the Fund through our long term partnership with the Australian Sports Foundation.

The funds include a donation from a donor of \$10,000 conditional upon the Foundation undertaking a project directed to achieving growth in player numbers in Victoria in particular, and which also will be applicable Nationally.

There is still a long way to go to the magic million dollar target, but as legendary investor Warren Buffet famously said, "there is nothing more powerful than compound interest at work, spending away your gains will significantly diminish your ultimate gains."



Audit responsibility for the Fund is now undertaken by the LVI Auditors, MVA Bennett.

For the Subcommittee Fergus Stewart April 2025



LV Annual Awards

Club of the Year

Footscray Lacrosse Club

Coach of the Year

Chris Marsh

Official of the Year

Men - James Bleed

Women - Meghan Mollison

Past President's Award

Richard Tonelli

Nell Rawlins Award

Stacey Morlang

Shappere Urn Award

Williamstown Women's Lacrosse Club



Best & Fairest

League	Player	Club
Men's State League	Cal Gibson	Williamstown Lacrosse Club
Women's State League	Stephanie Kelly	Footscray Lacrosse Club
Men's State League Reserves	Patrick McGrath- Campbell	Malvern Lacrosse Club
Women's State League Reserves	Jessica Casey	Newport Lacrosse Club
Men's Championship League	Steven Stojkos	MCC
Women's Championship League	Monica Ashton	Melbourne University
Men's Championship League Reserves	Alexander Fagan	MCC
Men's Community Cup	Blake Taylor	Williamstown Lacrosse Club
	Michael Kindred	Williamstown Lacrosse Club
Under 17 Women	Ava Dorinko	WWLC
Under 18 Men	Joshua Gordon	Williamstown Lacrosse Club
Under 16 Boys	Samuel Tonelli	Footscray Lacrosse Club
Under 14 Girls	Adelie Napolitano	WWLC
Under 14 Boys	Ajay Srikarthik	MCC
	Taj Sigley	Eltham Lacrosse Club



Top Goal Scorers

League	Player
Men's State League	Cal Gibson - 60
Women's State League	Danielle Mollison - 43

Premiers

Field Premierships

League	Premier Club
Women's State League	Footscray Lacrosse Club def Williamstown Women's 12-9
Men's State League	Footscray Lacrosse Club def Williamstown 14-13
Women's State League Reserves	Williamstown Women's def Newport 12-6
Men's State League Reserves	Williamstown Lacrosse Club def Malvern 22-11
Men's Championship League	Brunswick Lacrosse Club def MCC 9-8
Women's Championship League	Eltham def Williamstown Women's 10-8
Men's Championship League Reserves	MCC def Altona 18-7
Men's Community Cup	Williamstown Lacrosse Club def Malvern 22-2
Under 17 Women	Williamstown Women's def Camberwell/Malvern 19-1
Under 18 Men	Williamstown Lacrosse Club def Footscray 18-1
Under 16 Boys	Eltham Lacrosse Club def Malvern/Caulfield 12-5
Under 14 Girls	Footscray Lacrosse Club def Newport 8-7
Under 14 Boys	Eltham Lacrosse Club def MCC 10-8



Olympic Sixes

League	Premier Club
Senior Men's Olympic Sixes	Williamstown Lacrosse Club 20-19
Senior Women's Olympic	WWLC
Sixes	
U18 Boys Sixes	Williamstown Lacrosse Club

Box Premierships

League	Premier Team
2023 Vic Box Men	Rage
2023 Vic Box Women	Australian U20 Women
2023 U18 Box	Storm
2023 U15 Box	Thunder



Ladders & Minor Premiers

Men's State League

	TEAM	P	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Williamstown Lacrosse Club	16	14	1	1	221	92	129	240.22	60
2	Footscray Lacrosse Club	16	13	2	1	217	141	76	153.90	5
3	Malvern Lacrosse Club	16	12	3	1	190	122	68	155.74	52
4	Camberwell Lacrosse Club	16	8	7	1	178	143	35	124.48	36
5	Eltham Lacrosse Club	16	7	8	1	161	143	18	112.59	32
6	Caulfield Lacrosse Club	16	5	10	1	130	135	-5	96.30	24

Women's State League

	TEAM	Р	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Williamstown Women's Lacrosse Club	15	11	1	3	173	78	95	221.79	56
2	Footscray Lacrosse Club	15	9	3	3	156	86	70	181.40	48
3	Newport Lacrosse Club	15	7	5	3	129	91	38	141.76	40
4	Malvern Lacrosse Club	15	3	9	3	92	174	-82	52.87	24
5	Camberwell Lacrosse Club	15	0	12	3	69	190	-121	36.32	12



Men's State League Reserves

	TEAM	P	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Williamstown Lacrosse Club	16	15	0	1	361	29	332	1244.83	64
2	Malvern Lacrosse Club	16	12	3	1	153	97	56	157.73	52
3	Eltham Lacrosse Club	16	9	6	1	123	113	10	108.85	4
4	Camberwell Lacrosse Club	16	8	7	1	150	144	6	104.17	36
5	Footscray Lacrosse Club	16	7	8	1	124	118	6	105.08	32
6	Caulfield Lacrosse Club	16	5	10	1	92	176	-84	52.27	24

Women's State League Reserves

	TEAM	Р	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Newport Lacrosse Club	15	10	2	3	146	81	65	180.25	52
2	Williamstown Women's Lacrosse Club	15	9	3	3	136	86	50	158.14	48
3	Footscray Lacrosse Club	15	5	7	3	120	121	-1	99.17	32
4	Camberwell Lacrosse Club	15	5	7	3	136	138	-2	98.55	32
5	Malvern Lacrosse Club	15	1	11	3	65	177	-112	36.72	16



Women's Championship League

	TEAM	P	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Eltham Gold	14	11	1	2	213	63	150	338.10	52
2	Williamstown Women's Lacrosse Club	14	9	3	2	169	95	74	177.89	44
3	Melbourne University Lacrosse Club	14	8	4	2	141	112	29	125.89	40
4	Chadfield	14	6	6	2	125	109	16	114.68	32
5	Brunswick Lacrosse Club	14	4	8	2	132	164	-32	80.49	24
6	Melbourne Cricket Club Lacrosse	14	2	10	2	74	155	-81	47.74	16
7	Eltham Black	14	2	10	2	79	185	-106	42.70	16

Men's Championship League

	TEAM	Р	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Melbourne Cricket Club Lacrosse	16	7	7	2	143	144	-1	99.31	36
2	Brunswick Lacrosse Club	16	6	8	2	132	142	-10	92.96	32
3	Surrey Park Lacrosse Club	16	3	11	2	108	191	-83	56.54	20
4	Chadstone Lacrosse Club	16	3	11	2	117	208	-91	56.25	20
5	Altona Lacrosse Club	16	2	12	2	99	225	-126	44.00	16



Men's Championship League Reserves

	TEAM	Р	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Melbourne Cricket Club Lacrosse	16	11	3	2	127	88	39	144.32	52
2	Melbourne University/ Surrey Park	16	5	9	2	80	139	-59	57.55	28
3	Altona Lacrosse Club	16	5	9	2	85	166	-81	51.20	28
4	Chadstone Lacrosse Club	16	2	12	2	33	129	-96	25.58	16
5	Brunswick Lacrosse Club	16	1	13	2	68	147	-79	46.26	12

Men's Community Cup

	TEAM	Р	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Williamstown Lacrosse Club	15	13	0	2	216	23	193	939.13	60
2	Malvern Lacrosse Club	15	8	5	2	144	72	72	200.00	40
3	Footscray Lacrosse Club	15	6	7	2	74	108	-34	68.52	32
4	Melbourne Cricket Club Lacrosse	15	5	8	2	73	129	-56	56.59	28
5	Surrey Park/ Melbourne University	15	2	10	3	57	132	-75	43.18	20
6	Eltham Lacrosse Club	4	0	4	0	0	40	-40	0.00	0



Under 18 Boys

	TEAM	Р	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Williamstown Lacrosse Club	15	12	0	0	202	53	149	381.13	60
2	Footscray Lacrosse Club	15	9	3	0	141	84	57	167.86	48
3	Camberwell Lacrosse Club	15	4	7	1	85	120	-35	70.83	30
4	Brunswick/ Malvern/ Surrey	15	3	7	2	98	154	-56	63.64	28
5	Altona Lacrosse Club	15	0	11	1	65	170	-105	38.24	14

Under 17 Girls

	TEAM	Р	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Williamstown Women's Lacrosse Club	13	11	0	0	204	34	170	600.00	52
2	Footscray Lacrosse Club	13	6	4	1	118	90	28	131.11	34
3	Camberwell/Malvern	13	5	5	1	96	108	-12	88.89	30
4	Newport Lacrosse Club	13	3	8	0	91	152	-61	59.87	20
5	Eltham Lacrosse Club	10	0	8	0	30	135	-105	22.22	8

Under 16 Boys

	TEAM	P	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Eltham Lacrosse Club	15	14	1	0	219	69	150	317.39	56
2	Williamstown Lacrosse Club	15	11	4	0	173	85	88	203.53	44
3	Malvern/ Caulfield	15	10	5	0	139	121	18	114.88	40
4	Footscray Lacrosse Club	15	7	8	0	152	129	23	117.83	28
5	MCC/ Surrey Park/ Camberwell	15	2	13	0	52	178	-126	29.21	8
6	Melbourne High Lacrosse Club	15	1	14	0	50	193	-143	25.91	4



Under 14 Boys

	TEAM	P	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Eltham Lacrosse Club	15	15	0	0	249	65	184	383.08	60
2	MCC	15	10	4	1	125	87	38	143.68	42
3	Williamstown Lacrosse Club	15	8	6	1	141	115	26	122.61	34
4	Surrey Park/ Brunswick	15	7	8	0	92	117	-25	78.63	28
5	Footscray Lacrosse Club	15	2	13	0	74	195	-121	37.95	8
6	Malvern/ Caulfield/ Camberwell/ Ballarat	15	2	13	0	49	151	-102	32.45	8

Under 14 Girls

	TEAM	Р	W	L	В	For	Agst	GD	%	PTS
1	Newport Lacrosse Club	14	12	1	1	178	74	104	240.54	52
2	Footscray Lacrosse Club	14	11	1	2	188	82	106	229.27	5
3	Williamstown Gold	14	7	4	2	132	96	36	137.50	38
4	Malvern /Caulfield	14	4	7	1	114	126	-12	90.48	24
5	Camberwell Lacrosse Club	14	4	8	2	100	164	-64	60.98	24
6	Williamstown Blue	14	3	9	1	123	161	-38	76.40	18
7	MCC Lacrosse	14	2	10	2	90	163	-73	55.21	16
8	Eltham Lacrosse Club	3	0	3	0	0	29	-29	0.00	0



Clubs

Associated Clubs































